
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber 

29 November 2022. 
 
 
To:  Members of the Health Services Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
R Goodchild, V Harvey, S Jones, T Morris, S Owen and G Perham) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Health Services Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Monday, 5 December 2022 commencing at 10.00 am in the 
Council Chamber.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s Register 
of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by the 
Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3 (e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP Monday, 5 December 2022 
 

 

 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 

on 1 September 2022 (attached).  

 

(b)  To receive information updates on any matters arising from the previous 

meeting (summary report attached).  

  
 

5.   HEALTH SERVICES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE (Pages 9 - 14) 

 

 (c)  To receive any update from Andrew Selous MP in relation to healthcare 
provision in Leighton-Linslade. 

 
(d) To receive any other updates from group members and invited 

attendees in respect of healthcare provision in Leighton-Linslade. 
 

(e) To receive a report and supporting document submitted by Cllr V 
Harvey in respect of local heathcare provision (attached).  

 
(f) To consider next steps, for example the sharing of a progress report 

with residents of Leighton-Linslade.  
 
 
 
 

Task and Finish Group Aims (agreed 5 March 2020): 
 

1.     To press Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) and Central 
Bedfordshire Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) to bring forward proposals 
urgently for a Leighton-Linslade Health Hub as part of a planned approach to improved 
localisation of hospital services for local residents and to secure the town’s fair share of 
Government investment in the localisation agenda. 
 2.     To press for the development of that Plan to include local GPs and professions 
ancillary, patient groups and the Town Council, to promote, encourage and support 
early and regular consultation with residents of the parish in terms of the services to be 
provided and the location of the Hub. 
 3.     To pursue, in consultation with the three groups mentioned above, that this 
comprehensive Plan shall include: 
(a)   A Leighton-Linslade Hub providing a range of services that are currently provided 
by hospitals or not at all 
(b)   The accommodation and investment requirements of existing GP surgeries in the 
town 
(c)   Planned GP surgeries serving the new developments on the eastern side of the 
town and also Linslade residents, who used to have two GP surgeries but now had 
none. 

 
* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



   
   

Page 27 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

THURSDAY 1 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 1430 HOURS  
 

Present: Councillors  G Perham – in the Chair 
  V Harvey 
  S Owen 
  R Goodchild 
          

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  S Sandiford (Deputy Town Clerk) 

 
       Members of the Public:   0  

 
 
41/HS APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors S Jones, T Morris 
and D Bowater.  
 

42/HS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor R Goodchild declared a personal interest as Chair of Salisbury House 
GP Practice Patient Participation Group. Furthermore it was noted that all 
councillors appointed to the Task and Finish Group were residents of the parish 
and therefore had a personal interest in healthcare provision in the town.  
 
No pecuniary declarations were made or dispensations requested. 

 
43/HS QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 There were no members of the public present.  
 

 44/HS MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

(a) The Task and Finish Group received the minutes of the Health Services 
Task and Finish Group meeting held on 17 May 2022. 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Services Task and Finish Group 
meeting held 17 May 2022 be approved as a correct record and were 
signed accordingly. 
 
(b)  Updates arising from the previous meeting: Minute reference 40/HS – it 
was noted that following approval by Council on 27 June 2022, a report on 
healthcare provision had been submitted by Councillor G Perham to the Central 
Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board on 13 July 2022. The decision taken 
by that Committee was to request a “stocktake” report from officers to be 
presented at the next meeting on 19 October 2022.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health Services Task & Finish Group 1 SEPTEMBER  2022 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 28 

 
45/HS HEALTH SERVICES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE 
 

 The Task and Finish Group received a copy of the Final Strategic Outline Case 
for a Leighton Buzzard Integrated Health & Care Hub produced in September 
2019 by Arcadis for Central Bedfordshire Council and Bedfordshire CCG. This 
had been obtained by a personal Freedom of Information request submitted by 
Councillor S Owen, who also provided a commentary document for 
consideration. 
 
The group felt that the Strategic Outline Case document offered some 
inaccuracies (for example, the site locations and housing numbers shown in 
Figure 10 on Page 30) and some inconsistencies (for example, although the 
rationale outlined in the executive summary references “an over-reliance on 
acute hospitals” and “enabling the development of more local and appropriate 
health and social care services to reduce financial and activity pressures in the 
NHS”, the list of proposed core services (Figure 13, P. 33) gave little indication 
of de-centralised hospital services to be included at a hub. 
 
The group expressed some continuing confusion at the metric used to determine 
the Central Bedfordshire hub priority (GP practice square metres per patient), 
given the high number of patients per GP practice in Leighton-Linslade (Fig. 29) 
and given that the Strategic Outline Case (S 2.3, P.17) referenced “the 
development of an integrated health and care hub to work alongside the 
practices currently operating and provide a focal point for a broader range of 
services”.  It was perceived that existing practices and their current services 
should be largely unaffected by the development of a hub, which would bring 
together additional services to expand the offer to local residents.  
 
Concerns were expressed that although the document referenced “illness 
prevention and health promotion” as one of the top three priorities of the 
Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes Integrated Care System (Table 3, P. 21), 
the need to expand provision to include more preventative measures such as 
social prescribing was not sufficiently stressed. From case studies elsewhere it 
was understood that expanding services aimed at preventing health issues 
could deliver significant tangible benefits as well as reducing pressure on the 
NHS overall.  
 
Whilst recognising the impact of the Covid pandemic on the NHS nationally, the 
group expressed disappointment at the lack of progress since the publication of 
the 2019 Strategic Outline Case, given the ever-increasing pressures on 
healthcare provision in the town due to significant housing growth and the clear 
policy set out in The Care Act 2014 and the NHS Long Term Plan.  The group 
expressed a keen desire to support the Government’s objective to reduce 
pressure on hospitals and to therefore see wider public consultation on the 
potential location and services to be offered at an integrated Leighton-Linsalde 
hub, as well as progress on the question of a financial case/funding strategy.  
 
 
 
 

Page 2



Health Services Task & Finish Group 1 SEPTEMBER  2022 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 29 

It was noted that the views of local GPs on services to be provided from a hub 
would be essential. 
 
Councillor Owen advised he was due to meet with the Medical Director of the 
BLMK HCP later in the month. Councillor Harvey was due to meet with a director 
of the East London Foundation Trust. It was also understood that the local MP 
was due to have a meeting regarding healthcare later in the month.  
 
RESOLVED to write to key stakeholders to question: 
- The view of Central Bedfordshire Council and the BLMK Health and 

Care Partnership on the Strategic Outline Case 
- Whether any progress had been made since the 2019 document  
- What would be the emphasis of an integrated care hub in terms of 

services 
- The omission of a financial plan or strategy, or any reference to land 

values 
- The need for wider local consultation on potential location and services 

to be provided at an integrated hub 
- The commitment to the Government’s objective of relieving pressure 

on hospitals by providing additional, de-centralised hospital services 
such as acute care, diagnostic and outpatient services in the largest 
town in the Central Bedfordshire area, which would also reduce the 
need for Leighton-Linslade residents to travel up to 20 miles to 
appointments. 

 
It was suggested that a next meeting be held towards the end of October at 
which the outcomes of the various meetings referenced above, as well as the 
stocktake report due to be presented to the Central Bedfordshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board on 19 October and the response, if received, to the questions 
above could be discussed.  

 
 
The meeting closed at 1605 hours. 
 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 SEPTEMBER 2022. 

  

 

Chair                                   TBC 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 

Health Services Task and Finish Group 
 

Date:  5 December 2022   

 

Title:  Update from actions arising from 2022 meetings of the Task and 
Finish Group.  

 
Report author:   Sarah Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 

 

 

1  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 To note the information.  
 

 

2  BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 Leighton-Linslade Town Council’s Health Services Task and Finish Group has 
met on a number of occasions since March 2020.  The purpose of this report is 
to give an update on actions agreed at meetings held during 2022, to date.  

 
2.2 Meeting held 5 March 2022: 
 
 2.2.1 A resolution was made to write to Central Bedfordshire Council and the 

Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK) Clinical Commissioning Group 
to seek information in respect of a number of points regarding healthcare 
provision and the development of an integrated care hub in Leighton Buzzard. 

 
 2.2.2 Letters were sent on 29 April 2022.  
 
 2.2.3 No response has been received to date.  
 
2.3 Meeting held 17 May 2022: 
 

 2.3.1 A resolution was made to develop an official report from the Town 
Council, for submission to the Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board (HWB). 

 
 2.3.2 The report was endorsed by the Town Council on 27 June 2022 and 
received by the Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board at its 
meeting held 13 July 2022.  The report made the following recommendations 
to the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 

Page 5



 
  

- reviewing the priority order for the five hubs. 
- clarifying the position regarding capital funding. 
- clarifying the timescales for the ICH project. 
- ensuring that stakeholders across the geographic area are involved and 
engaged early in the process, so that detailed local knowledge and 
experience can be taken into account.   

 
 2.3.3   The HWB requested the production of a stocktake report to be brought 
to its next meeting (see extract of minutes at Appendix A).  

 
2.3.4 At its meeting held 19 October 2022, the CBC HWB received a “Fuller 
Stocktake report” for Central Bedfordshire. The report was noted (relevant 
extract of minutes is shown at Appendix B and the report itself attached at 
Appendix C).   
 

2.4  Meeting held 1 September 2022 
 
2.4.1 A resolution was made to write to key stakeholders to question:  
 
- The view of Central Bedfordshire Council and the BLMK Health and Care 

Partnership on the Strategic Outline Case 
- Whether any progress had been made since the 2019 document  
- What would be the emphasis of an integrated care hub in terms of services 
- The omission of a financial plan or strategy, or any reference to land values 
- The need for wider local consultation on potential location and services to 

be provided at an integrated hub 
- The commitment to the Government’s objective of relieving pressure on 

hospitals by providing additional, de-centralised hospital services such as 
acute care, diagnostic and outpatient services in the largest town in the 
Central Bedfordshire area, which would also reduce the need for Leighton-
Linslade residents to travel up to 20 miles to appointments. 

 
2.4.2 In accordance with the above, a letter was sent to the Chief Medical 
Director of the BLMK ICB on 20 September 2022, with a copy sent by email to 
other representatives of BLMK ICB, several representatives of Central 
Bedfordshire Council and to the Member of Parliament for South West 
Bedfordshire.  
 
2.5.2  At the time of writing, no response has been received to this 
correspondence.  
 

End. 
 
Appendices: 
A: extract of minutes of CBC HWB meeting held 13 July 2022 
B: extract of minutes of CBC WEB meeting held 19 October 2022 
C: Fuller Stocktake Report presented to CBC HWB meeting held 19 October 
2022 

 

Page 6



 
  

 
Appendix A: extract of minutes of CBC Health and Wellbeing Board 
meeting 13 July 2022 

 
  Healthcare Provision in Leighton Buzzard and Linslade  
 

The Board received a report seeking urgent engagement in the healthcare 
provision in Leighton Buzzard. The Board were advised that better health care 
was needed in the town. 
 
All residents had experienced problems, such as the length of time it took to 
get a doctor’s appointment. The Leighton Linslade Town Council Task and 
Finish group had outlined some recommendations to the Board as set out in 
the report.  
 
It was noted that previously a paper had been provided about the lack of 
doctors and the difficulty in attracting General Practitioners (GPs) to the area. 
However, the Board had previously stated that the Integrated Care Hub 
system would facilitate an integrated local based multidisciplinary workforce 
and would help to sustain and develop more resilient primary care services 
and mitigate the impact of workforce shortages. 
 
The Board were supportive of the idea of looking at a stock take report to 
understand, not just Leighton Linslade, but the whole population of Central 
Bedfordshire. It was clarified that each Health and Care Hub cost in excess of 
£20m and the section 106 funds, were not sufficient to cover even one Hub.  
 
Unfortunately, capital was not available to deliver all the Health and Care 
Hubs at the same time but accelerating the delivery of them should be looked 
at. It was asked that evidence of funding being sought and being spent should 
be provided.  
 
In response to a question, the BLMK ICB Chief Medical Director confirmed 
that a virtual Hub would help, but there would still be constraints on who and 
where people would work. It was stated that Primary Care Networks were 
about people working together to ensure groups of patients had access to the 
same level of care and about signposting people to the right place.  
 
RESOLVED that a Stocktake report to see priorities, challenges, current 
sources of capital available and options for funding in Central 
Bedfordshire, be brought to the next Health and Wellbeing Board 
meeting in October. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
  

Appendix B: extract of draft minutes of Central Bedfordshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board meeting held 19 October 2022: 

 
Next steps for Integrating Primary Care: Fuller Stocktake Report and Estates 
Prioritisation in Central Bedfordshire  
 
The Board received a report on the next steps for Integrating Primary Care: 
Fuller Stocktake Report and the Estates Prioritisation in Central Bedfordshire. 
Points and comments included: 
 
 • The Fuller Stocktake Report had four recommendations: Neighbourhood 
Team Development, Emphasis on same day Urgent Care, Personalised Care-
especially around long-term conditions, and Prevention. 
 • For residents there were three main areas where they may notice a change: 
o Prevention- lifestyle changes, use of apps, digital first but not digital only, 
health coaches, using wider primary care, uptake of vaccination and 
screening. o Change to Urgent and Episodic Care- single point of contact, and 
place based multidisciplinary teams to triage and sign post people. o Person 
Centred Care- Care coordinators with the emphasis on self-care and self-
prevention. 
 • The Primary Care Update highlighted the ongoing Estates and Hub 
Programme. There were 45 schemes in Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton 
Keynes and the Dunstable hub was due to go live in April 2023.  
• The hubs were resource intensive and faced challenges such as 
construction restraints. It was not possible to do 45 schemes at once, and to 
prioritise them the National Shape Atlas Framework had been used. This 
would allow for five schemes to be taken forward each year based on the 
greatest need.  
• During discussion, the Board commented that each Place should be involved 
in driving priorities for its own place, as it was important to remember to 
champion the population of Central Bedfordshire.  
• In response to a question, it was confirmed that the progress on the 
schemes would be in the public domain but would be discussed at the Central 
Bedfordshire Place Board meetings and brought to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board as updates.  
 
NOTED  
1. the development of the plan/framework in response to the ‘Next steps 
for integrating Primary Care: Fuller Stocktake Report’; and  
2. the constraints highlighted in relation to Estates schemes to support 
primary care development. 

 

Page 8



Different approach to the future of health services in Leighton Buzzard from Cllr Harvey. 28/11/22 
 
Present Situation  
Although there have been frequent meetings with the  Clinical Commissioning Group and  many questions have 
been asked at the  Health and Well Being Board, close cooperative  working with the local doctors and with the PPGs  
in order to fully  understand the issues facing the town has not been  part of this committee’s work.  
The CCG  now the ICB( Integrated Care Board)   and Central Bedfordshire  Council are obviously very important in  
the decision making process. This committee ( Health Services Task and Finish Group)  has engaged with  both 
parties and has disagreed with some of  the statements and explanations  that have been offered by them.  
 
CBC, the CCG and Integrated  Care Board seem to have a very fixed view of the hub programme  and there is not the 
capital funds in the CBC    Medium Term Financial  Plan  for CBC to build a hub in Leighton Buzzard in the near future 
and with the national   economic uncertainty it is even less likely.  
 
 
Does a Hub style programme as laid out in the Strategic Business Plan fit Leighton Buzzard’s needs. 
 
The Strategic Business Case for the Leighton Buzzard Hub obtained by Cllr Owen raises questions as to whether   
despite the urgent need for more healthcare facilities in Leighton Linslade,  the Hub programme adequately fits the 
needs of Leighton Linslade. There are three key concerns.   
 
1. The conversations with CBC  and the Strategic Business Case  appear to assume   that the  surgeries  would 

move into  one  building.  However it would also   appear that our local surgeries  do not want to move premises 
into one building.  There are three very different models of surgeries in the town some are part of a larger trust 
such as ELFT whereas others are individual businesses.  Furthermore   Bassett Road Surgery has invested very 
heavily in  their  buildings in Bassett Road and there is significant space in the Grovebury road premises  with 
the PPG starting a community garden.  It is very unlikely that these surgeries would want to move from their 
existing sites. 

2. The Strategic Business Case does not cover, except for a couple of vague paragraphs, the need for  localised 
hospital services. The urgent need for localised hospital services, when Leighton Buzzard is between 11 and 14 
miles from the nearest hospital, has been raised many times by members of  this committee  and the PPGs.  

3.  The Voluntary and Community Sector provides activities supporting health and wellbeing and is key to reducing 
the pressure on GP’s. In a case highlighted by All-Party Parliamentary Group on Arts, Health and Wellbeing 
Health and Art, Arts on Prescription reduced the demand for GP appointments by 37%.  Page 7 
https://www.culturehealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/  This sector (as acknowledged  by the  ICB) suffers 
from  both a lack of funding  support and  especially from lack of affordable venues in Leighton Buzzard Town 
Centre.  

 
In summary it appears that there is not a need to move the actual surgeries, but there is  a need for   some rooms/ 
part of a building   and  the associated funding for localised hospital services and   preventative care.  
 
Moving  Forward -the key areas to work on. 
Localised Hospital services 
The need for localised hospital services has been clearly stated by the PPGs and this should be explored by this 
Committee with the PPG’s and the Surgeries. 
 
 The preventative agenda 
There is attached Cllr Harvey’s  question to the Integrated Care Board and the Response. This  letter and response is 
very positive. A key paragraph is  
The ICB is committed to formalising a strategic partnership with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
(VCSE) sector, building on existing structures and engagement at neighbourhood, place and system.  The imbalance 
of funding with social prescribing models is recognised and the risk of community groups closing this winter due to 
their financial position is concerning, especially where they provide support to those more likely to experience health 
inequalities.  There are mechanisms for the VCSE sector be engaged in place based discussions and in the short term, 
there will be opportunities to access funding to deliver activities that support preventative programmes at place. 
 The present Social Prescribing  system funds the social prescribers based  within the PCN. It does not fund  activities  
and community groups that  the patient might be  referred  to  by the social prescribers.   There is a very small Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.culturehealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/


amount of  funding  from CBC and BRCC for  active lifestyles which is mainly online and a once a weekly exercise 
class in Tiddenfoot and one walk, but the Wellbeing Walks ( 3 a week)  are entirely run by volunteers with very little 
financial support. There are also a huge amount of groups and classes that could do far more to combat loneliness 
and keep people healthy  if they had small amounts of support and above all affordable central venues.  The  recent 
fund raising work to support Spectrum Arts  highlights the lack of funding for activities that play a huge role in 
health. There is a very successful  model  that ELFT used in Newham where  in cases of Diabetes the GPS prescribed   
26 classes from community groups and paid the community groups for  the classes for each individual prescription.   
This significantly reduced the  number of patients  diagnosed  diabetes and so helped avoid the co- morbidities of 
this condition and the associated pressures on the health system in the area. This style of prescribing  is known as 
Community Prescribing and could be explored. The ICB are very supportive of exploring this model. 
 
Other potential partners   
There is also significant need  from other areas in CBC that play a role in preventative health  such as Children’s 
services, adult social care and  Housing  that could be meet with more  dancing/ music/ arts   activities for  children 
and young people, more opportunities  for adults to meet and help people engage and take part in community 
activities. CBC has a significant shortage of  one bedroom flats for  social housing in Leighton Buzzard. 
 
Possible Solutions.  
There is the potential   to solve our health needs without moving the surgeries into a different venue. There is the 
possible development. on the Land South of the High Street.   The PPG’s have made it clear that they wish for an 
increase in health services to be based in the town centre, not in the two alternative sites that were proposed by the 
CCG. The  Surgeries do not want to move  from their premises, but are in urgent need of extra  rooms for all the 
other health activities and for localised hospital services.  The surgeries are already working jointly on social 
prescribing and so could work   together to share these extra facilities. If the town council were to move to a multi 
purpose venue built in partnership with health providers, some of the needs might be met. There could be a large 
hall that could serve both as a Council Chamber and also for community facilities, plus other rooms for activities/ art 
workshops/ knit and natter/  a community café etc. There could be other rooms used by the NHS for localised 
hospital services that are shared by the surgeries. 
 
Next Steps. 
However in order to move forward constructively on this discussion, this committee needs to engage in constructive 
dialogue with the Patient Participation groups and Surgeries. The needs/ challenges  and potential vision of  both the 
Surgeries  and  the Patient Participation Groups in the town  are very important. These are the people dealing with 
the everyday issues and seeing where the real challenges are. This committee cannot move forward unless it works 
in partnership with these organisations.  Partnership working especially at a time of economic uncertainty in the 
country and increasing spending pressures on Local Authorities is very important. 
 
The recommendation is that this Committee will engage with the local PCN/ surgeries and the Patient Participation 
Group in a constructive dialogue and will work on partnership with them. 
 
  

Page 10



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Dear Cllr V Harvey 
 
Thank you for submitting a questions for the meeting of the Board of the Integrated Care 
Board with took place on Friday 30 September 2022. 
 
Your question together with the response from the Board read out at the meeting by the 
Chief Primary Care Officer will be published on our public website.  For your convenience I 
attach a copy to this letter. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Governance & Compliance Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Office of the CEO & Chair 
Arndale House 

3rd Floor 
The Mall 

Luton LU1 2LJ 
 

Tel: 0800 148 8890 
Email: blmkicb.contactus@nhs.net  

Website: www.blmkicb.nhs.uk  

18 October 2022 
 
By email 
 
 
 

Page 11

mailto:blmkicb.contactus@nhs.net
http://www.blmkicb.nhs.uk/


Page 2 of 3 
 

Question:  
 
My question is to ask the Integrated Care Board   to increase the funding for prevention rather than 
funding being concentrated on   GPs and Hospitals with the aim of an overall reduction in cost to 
the ICS.   
 
Although social prescribing is funded, which is good, there is no funding for the actual activities   
usually run by community voluntary groups that social prescribers refer their patients to.  These 
community groups struggle for funding and often small sums such a couple of hundred pounds can 
make all the difference to a group’s survival.   We are at risk of many preventative occupations of 
exercise, outdoor activity, arts, dance, social connectiveness etc. being be lost as community   
groups cannot survive without funding and close down.  
  
The work All-Party Parliamentary Group on Arts, Health and Wellbeing in their report “Creative 
Health: The Arts for Health and Wellbeing” showed that an Arts on Prescription project has shown 
a 37% drop in GP consultation rates and a 27% reduction in hospital admissions. This represents a 
saving of £216 per patient. A social return on investment of between £4 and £11 has been 
calculated for every £1 invested in arts on prescription.  The benefits of walking and exercise to 
heart conditions and diabetes surely do not need to be explained to this board.  
  
My request is for the ICS Board to look at different models which would help to fund the community 
groups   such as the very successful Community Prescribing that took place in Newham in London 
for diabetes. One of the architects of Community Prescribing who was vice chair of Newham CCG 
has   offered to talk to you about the details of Community Prescribing. 
 
 Two key examples; 
 
I am particularly concerned about two groups in Leighton Buzzard which exemplify the problem  
 Walk 4Health is run by volunteers. There are three walks per week; one of half an hour, one 60 
mins and one 90 mins. The walk is always followed by a time for coffee and tea and chatting and 
the social side is hugely important.  The half hour walk is especially important at helping people 
with chronic conditions.  The commitment by volunteers is significant as it is a two day a week 
commitment; one day for the walk and also one preparatory day checking the route in advance. 
However the volunteers as well as this commitment have to pay to print their own leaflets to 
promote the service to the surgeries. They also have to pay for their own travel expenses to travel 
to Bedford for training.  It is really important that there are enough trained leaders so that the 
volunteer leaders are able to go away on holiday or fulfil other commitments. Small things like a 
fund for those who cannot afford walking shoes and perhaps a minibus trip up to Rushemere 
country park so that there can sometimes be a change of scene could really help the group. Lack 
of small sums of funding could end this fantastic service. 
  
Spectrum Arts   in Leighton Buzzard works with a huge range of people with a wide range of 
physical and mental disabilities and conditions on dance and performance   which helps self 
esteem and overall health and engagement and general well being. It   is very moving seeing 
people who are very disconnected from those around begin to engage, move and above all smile 
and look happy.  This organisation uses many volunteers in its work but is at risk of closing due to 
lack of funding. 
  
Leighton Buzzard abounds with Community Group that can offer a range of arts, walking, 
movement, knit and natter etc yet the lack of small amounts of funding prevent these groups from 
playing a significant role in reducing the pressure on GPs and hospitals.  
 
Would the ICS please consider Leighton Buzzard being a pilot project for funding of   community 
groups to reduce the pressure on GPs and Hospitals? 
  
Response:  
 

Page 12



Page 3 of 3 
 

Helping people to stay well for longer is one of our key objectives in the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and 
we are working as system partners for a more ambitious and joined-up approach to 
prevention.  Currently, Primary Care (including GP practices, community pharmacists, optometrist and 
dentists) all have prevention as a vital elements of their contracted work.  
 
The ICB’s prevention programme is a key recommendations of the ‘Fuller Report’ and the Chief Primary 
Care Officer is working with the Directors of Public Health in Bedfordshire, Luton & Milton Keynes, to 
develop the step-change approach on preventative care by:  
 

 Supporting lifestyle change via a combination of national and local programmes providing advice 

and support to improve diet, fitness and wellbeing, e.g., health coaches and capitalising on 

evidence-based health apps, and the NHS app. This involves the extended primary care team, 

harnessing the growing role of community pharmacy and dentistry in prevention, VCS, and 

working at scale on prevention with local authority Public Health colleagues. 

 A scaled approach to delivering population-level interventions, including screening and health 

checks, and adult vaccinations, building on the community engagement that was successfully 

established through the Covid-19 vaccination programme. 

  
The ‘Place Boards’ are the forums where different models of care would be considered as part of local 
‘prevention plans’. Collaborative and integrated working within local communities at a place level is 
currently taking place with facilitation from Alexia Stenning (Associate Director of Primary Care, ICB) 
Elizabeth Elliott (Luton Borough Council, Public Health) and Marimba Carr (Bedford Borough, Central 
Beds and Milton Keynes Public Health Team) as system members. 
 
We fully support your request to look at different models and would welcome the offer to hear about work 
from Newham about the details of Community Prescribing. 
 
The ICB is committed to formalising a strategic partnership with the Voluntary, Community and Social 
Enterprise (VCSE) sector, building on existing structures and engagement at neighbourhood, place and 
system.  The imbalance of funding with social prescribing models is recognised and the risk of 
community groups closing this winter due to their financial position is concerning, especially where they 
provide support to those more likely to experience health inequalities.  There are mechanisms for the 
VCSE sector be engaged in place based discussions and in the short term, there will be opportunities to 
access funding to deliver activities that support preventative programmes at place. 
 
In the longer term, having the VCSE sector as an equal strategic partner will ensure that we are able to 
realise our ambition of supporting local people to live longer in good health.  The VCSE have an 
important role to play in service delivery but their insight and deep connections with local communities 
also means they have a central role in prevention.  Community development approaches are an 
important element of social prescribing models that deliver better outcomes.  Connected and active 
communities keep people well and reduce pressure on traditional health services, and the ICB 
recognises its role in supporting a thriving VCSE sector. 

 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	Updates since meeting held 1 Sept 2022

	5 HEALTH SERVICES IN LEIGHTON-LINSLADE
	Letter to Cllr Harvey 13.10.2022 QR (002)


